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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Good morning.

          3  Welcome, everyone.  I guess this is appropriate to

          4  say, Happy New Year, since this is the first time we

          5  have seen each other this year.  I hope you have a

          6  prosperous New Year.

          7                 I am Council Member Bill Perkins,

          8  Chair of the City Council's Committee on

          9  Governmental Operations.  Today we will be

         10  conducting a hearing on two bills, Proposed

         11  Introductory Bill 171 A, and Proposed Introductory

         12  Bill 313- A.  These will be two separate hearings.

         13                 This is the third hearing on Intro.

         14  171- A, the first was on May 2nd, 2002, and the

         15  second was on December 12th, 2002. Intro. 171- A

         16  deals with strengthening and clarifying the Campaign

         17  Finance Act.  The bill has been amended, and the

         18  Committee will review these amendments.

         19                 Intro. 313- A relates to candidates

         20  being able to raise funds to repay campaign debt.

         21                 We expect to hear testimony from

         22  elected officials, the Campaign Finance Board, and

         23  Election Attorneys.  In addition, many members of

         24  the Committee have participated in the program have

         25  their own experiences with the program, and we, of
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          2  course, have our own opinions about the program.

          3                 What are these bills trying to

          4  accomplish?  Let me begin by noting that New York

          5  City has been trail blazing in regards to Campaign

          6  Finance Reform.  This Council, first enacted

          7  Campaign Finance Reform Legislation back in 1988.

          8  We created a program that has been paradigm shifting

          9  and a model for other cities in the nation as a

         10  whole.  The program, of course, is not perfect, and

         11  with time it is tested, and then reviewed, and

         12  revised.

         13                 These bills appear to be trying to do

         14  one of these necessary such revisions.

         15  Notwithstanding such imperfections, the Campaign

         16  Finance Program has moved our City ahead by leaps

         17  and bounds.  And most importantly democratic

         18  participation by the people has been enhanced.

         19                 Many of the changes to 171- A appear

         20  to be mostly technical, changes aimed at easing the

         21  administrative burden on both the candidates and the

         22  Campaign Finance Board, and generally facilitating a

         23  more seamless functioning of the program.  Of

         24  course, even a lot a little technical changes can

         25  have a huge consequence in their real world

                                                            5

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  application.  So the Committee is watchful and

          3  mindful, and wants to take the time to review

          4  everything carefully.  This bill is not meant to

          5  deal with increasing or decreasing matching funds,

          6  or increasing or decreasing candidate campaign

          7  expenditure limitations, or contribution

          8  limitations.

          9                 Intro. 313- A is aimed at a concern

         10  that we as Council members are aware of and have

         11  heard much about.  It deals with candidates being

         12  able to go back to their core contributors, family,

         13  friends, and the such, to raise money to pay off

         14  their campaign debts.

         15                 Campaigns often have many unforeseen

         16  consequence that may not come to light until several

         17  months or longer after the election is over.  At

         18  this time, the campaign has no money, because it has

         19  either been spent or given back to the City.  The

         20  campaign has debt, and there are rules that may

         21  prohibit candidates from going back to their core

         22  supporters.  The only supporters concern with

         23  helping to pay off this type of debt since there is

         24  little to be politically gained by doing so.

         25                   Intro. 313- A seeks to address this
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          2  concern, and to do it in such a way as to not

          3  subvert the fundamental goals of the Campaign

          4  Finance Act.  In fact, it would be contrary to the

          5  Act, if a broad spectrum of potential candidates

          6  were hesitant to take part in City electoral

          7  politics, because they feared being saddled with

          8  debt, and have no personal fortune, or any means to

          9  ambulate this fear.

         10                   I should point out that we have

         11  available for the public a editorial about this

         12  particular bill that was recently written in the New

         13  York Sun, that you might want to look at, it gives

         14  you another sense of why this bill is considered to

         15  be significant.

         16                 Before we begin hearing, I would like

         17  to acknowledge the other members of the Committee,

         18  and to begin with I want to first acknowledge the

         19  Chair of our Senior Centers Committee, Michael

         20  Nelson, sitting to the left of Michael Nelson is the

         21  Chair of our Public Safety Committee, Peter Vallone

         22  Jr., sitting to his left is the Majority Whip and

         23  the Chair of our Rules, Privileges and Elections

         24  Committee, Leroy Comrie, to my left as always is the

         25  one and only Chair of Our Parks and Recreation
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          2  Committee, Joseph Addabbo Jr., and last but surely

          3  not least the Chair of our Consumer Affairs

          4  Committee, Council Member Philip Reed, and having

          5  mention his name may I advise you to please turn off

          6  your beepers.

          7                 Normally we would begin by asking our

          8  Chair of the Education Committee, Eva Moskowitz, who

          9  is the sponsor of one of our bills to have a some

         10  remarks.  However, we are happy to say she has just

         11  given birth yesterday, to a baby boy, so please give

         12  her a round of applause for the record.

         13                 And, now what I would like to do is

         14  begin by calling forward our first panel.  Panel one

         15  is representing the Administration for the Campaign

         16  Finance Board, the Executive Director of the

         17  Campaign Finance Board, Nicole Gordon, and the

         18  General Counsel for the Campaign Board Sue Ellen

         19  Dodell, and the Director of Campaign Finance

         20  Administration, Amy M. Loprest.  There I see is an

         21  additional person, maybe our folks can get her,

         22  okay, you have a chair.  Thank you very much, you

         23  will be sworn in by our Counsel, Matthew Tollin.

         24                 MR. TOLLIN:  Good morning, could you

         25  raise your right hand?  Do you solemnly swear and
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          2  affirm that the testimony you are about to give is

          3  the truth the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          4                 ALL:  Yes.

          5                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you, could you

          6  please, each for the record, state your name, and

          7  who you represent, and your title.

          8                 MS. GORDON:  Nicole Gordon, New York

          9  City Finance Board, Executive Director.

         10                 MS. DODELL:  Sue Ellen Dodell,

         11  General Counsel, Campaign Board.

         12                 MS. CAMPOLO:  Carol Campolo, Deputy

         13  Director.

         14                 MS. LOPREST:  Amy Loprest, Director

         15  of Campaign Finance Administration.

         16                 MS. GORDON:  Good morning, Chairman

         17  Perkins, and members of the Committee.  I take it

         18  you have been introduced to the people hear with me.

         19    Thank you for the opportunity to testify today.

         20                 I would like to thank again, those

         21  representing the Council with whom we worked closely

         22  and hard on the proposed legislation, Eric Lane,

         23  Marcel Van Ooyen, and Matthew Tollin.  As I

         24  testified before you in general support of Intro.

         25  171- A last December 12th, I will not repeat the
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          2  points I made then in detail, but refer you to my

          3  previous testimony, copies of which we can provide.

          4  I will only address differences between the proposal

          5  before you, in December and today.

          6                 The new proposal correctly

          7  differentiates among participating candidates for

          8  different offices in the amounts they can contribute

          9  to other candidates without consequence to their

         10  public matching funds.  In principle, it is benefit

         11  to the candidates and to the board to have a small

         12   "safe harbor" for campaign contributions.  In 2001,

         13  Council candidates gave a much lower average amount

         14  to other candidates that the $3,000 "safe harbor"

         15  contained in this bill.  We will monitor how the

         16   "safe harbor" is used, and make recommendations to

         17  you for change, if warranted.

         18                 We continue to have some concerns

         19  about the way in which a "safe harbor" has been

         20  described for political activities, but again, we

         21  are prepared to implement the provisions as drafted,

         22  to study the results, and again, if necessary to

         23  recommend changes in the future, as Council Member

         24  Perkins was eluding to the process.

         25                 The Board was disappointed to find
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          2  that its recommendations for change to the Debate

          3  Law were removed from the proposed legislation, but

          4  we look forward to working with you and with the

          5  Mayor's Office to see these changes through quickly.

          6  Similarly, Campaign Finance Board recommendations,

          7  as Council Member Perkins described, are not a

          8  subject of consideration right now, that is the

          9  contribution limits, expenditure limits, and maximum

         10  public funds.  And we anticipate providing to you,

         11  and to the Mayor's Office an updated version of the

         12  draft bill that we previously provided, and we hope

         13  that the Council and the Mayor will move forward in

         14  these areas, as well as on the Debate Law.

         15                 In the meantime, the Campaign Finance

         16  Board and its staff look forward to future

         17  collaborations with the Council and its staff, to

         18  ensure that New York City's Campaign Finance Program

         19  remains at the forefront of reform.

         20                 I want to thank you, and am pleased

         21  to answer any questions that you may have.

         22                 Council Member Perkins, I also wanted

         23  to say that we have done some research, and we are

         24  prepared to respond to a question that Council

         25  Member Vallone posed to us at the last hearing, and
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          2  I do not know whether you would want to recognize

          3  someone first who had questions, or whether this

          4  would be an appropriate time for me to raise those.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Whatever is

          6  your pleasure.

          7                 MS. GORDON:  Well, just, I did want

          8  to report back, we said we would look into how

          9  various jurisdictions have treated the problem of

         10  campaigns putting false statements in their

         11  literature.  And what we have found is that it is

         12  rare for there to be a legislative solution to that,

         13  and that when there is, as there was once in New

         14  York State, they have generally been struck down.

         15  But there is a pattern of civic group, private codes

         16  of conduct that may be an avenue for New York City,

         17  where an outside organization gets the candidates to

         18  pledge to certain standards, and then that

         19  organization, rather than a government agency, can

         20  be a forum for these kinds of concerns.  I am not

         21  suggesting that that is a 100 percent satisfactory

         22  result of our research, but in any event, I wanted

         23  to be responsive and let the Council know what we

         24  found.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very
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          2  much.  We will start with questions from Council

          3  Member Phil Reed.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Thank you Mr.

          5  Chair, good morning.

          6                 I have unfortunately have not had a

          7  chance to read all of this through, which is my

          8  fault, but I am concern about the statement right at

          9  the top of the overview, about money order

         10  contributions over $100, will not be matched.  And,

         11  I am trying to understand the reasoning, and

         12  perhaps, since you said a lot of this was

         13  negotiated, I might be speaking to my Chair about

         14  this, but I do not understand that, and I certainly

         15  would like to,--  good morning,- - I would like to

         16  have that explained to me.

         17                 MS. GORDON:  I think I can respond to

         18  that, that was a recommendation of the Board.  Our

         19  experience has been that, unfortunately, money

         20  orders are an area where the program is very

         21  vulnerable to fraud, and that money orders are

         22  really not different from cash in that respect.

         23  Cash contributions over $100 are not even permitted

         24  under State law, and they are certainly not matched.

         25  It was the Board's concern and view that money
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          2  orders contributions ought to be, at most, treated

          3  like cash.  And, it was also one of the thoughts, I

          4  know for some people it is burdensome to have a

          5  checking account, but on the other hand, somebody

          6  who can afford to give a $100 contribution,

          7  presumably, will fall in a class that would maintain

          8  a checking account.  So, that those were the

          9  considerations that were at work.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I did not

         11  understand the last thing you said, pardon?

         12                 MS. GORDON:  A money order, you would

         13  normally expect to see a money order contribution of

         14  that size of $100 from someone who would maintain a

         15  checking account any way so, I am not sure that

         16  there is a countervailing public interest in

         17  permitting money order contributions to be matched

         18  if they are over $100. They can still be given, but

         19  they just will not be matched with public funds over

         20  $100.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:   Well, I just

         22  would like to voice my opposition to that part of

         23  the bill.  There are a lot of people in the

         24  communities that I represent that do not have

         25  checking accounts, that use money orders for a lot
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          2  of transactions, with respect to, I know we have

          3  some active issues presently relating to money

          4  orders.  But, I just think that this is limiting

          5  some people opportunities in the community to

          6  support candidates, and I think there is a better

          7  way to go about that.  I do not know what the limit

          8  should be, but that in my experience many, many

          9  people want to make cash contributions.  We have

         10  tried to say no we do not want cash it is just as

         11  awkward and it is difficult in a lot of ways, so

         12  they want to go get a money order.  And it is not

         13  necessarily just a $100, certainly it is not

         14  probably going to be more than $200, you know, but

         15  the fact is, when you put that in there, I think you

         16  are depriving a lot of candidates in certain

         17  communities the opportunity to get matching funds

         18  just because it is convenient for the Board, it is

         19  not convenient for a lot of people in our

         20  communities.

         21                 MS. GORDON:  I would not call it a

         22  matter of convenience for the Board, it actually has

         23  no consequence in terms of convenience for the

         24  Board.  It much more has to do with our ability to

         25  track down and to detect fraud, and as you said, it
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          2  is a serious problem as illustrated --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:   No, Ma'am, I

          4  did not say it was a serious problem.

          5                 MS. GORDON:  Oh, I am sorry I thought

          6  you were alluding to --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I said, I know

          8  there is presently one particular case that, as I

          9  understand, deals with money orders, but I did not

         10  say it was a serious problem.  Because these are

         11  things--

         12                 MS. GORDON:  Okay, I am sorry I did

         13  not mean --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: --  that people

         15  in our community use all the time to pay their rent,

         16  that is how they transact business.

         17                 MS. GORDON:  I think that the law

         18  does have its limits on how well it can address some

         19  of these items.  As I mentioned, a $100

         20  contributions, or over $100, are not even permitted

         21  by State law in cash, at all.  So, we, in

         22  consultation with Law Enforcement Authorities, and

         23  based on experience, this was our best

         24  recommendation.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  I appreciate
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          2  that, Mr. Chair, I am just acknowledging that that

          3  is what you think is the best recommendation, I do

          4  not.  And, I would like to make an amendment before

          5  we move forward with this, Mr. Chair, that we look

          6  at that and change that number.  You know, many of

          7  us have looked at the new forms, that the campaign

          8  contribution forms that have to be filled out and

          9  signed.  And, so it is becoming more and more, there

         10  is more to the process people have to sign away that

         11  they made these contributions freely, and I think

         12  that ought to be counter balancing whatever it is

         13  that you, in Law Enforcement, feel is the access, or

         14  the ease of fraud in terms of the money orders.

         15                   I find that very dismaying when I

         16  know who it is in my community that we work with.

         17  We are trying very hard to get them involved in the

         18  political process to understand how those

         19  contributions help, and that helps them participate

         20  in things.  So, I would very much object to that

         21  very small limit, or perhaps there is some place in

         22  between, Council Member Perkins, I appreciate your

         23  time on this.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you for

         25  your concerns, Council member, it is dually noted,
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          2  and will be taken under advisement the amendment

          3  that you are suggesting.

          4                 May I ask, do you have a sense of how

          5  many money orders over $100 are actually used?

          6                 MS. GORDON:  I do not have any

          7  figures I can give you.  Although, they are easy for

          8  us to research and get the information back to you.

          9  I will say that, when we have detected fraud, it has

         10  been on the high end of the money order

         11  contributions above $100.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         13  much.

         14  Council Member Vallone Jr., I believe, had a

         15  question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

         17  Mr. Chair.

         18                 Thank you for your research into

         19  false statements on publicly funded material, as you

         20  are aware of from our private conversations, it is

         21  an issue that greatly concerns me, having run

         22  against someone who completely fabricated newspaper

         23  endorsements and mailed it to the entire community.

         24                 Do you have a suggestion as to what

         25  type of private group would be able to undertake
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          2  that?

          3                 MS. GORDON:  Well, I would imagine,

          4  and I certainly do not want to speak for them, but I

          5  imagine that groups like the League of Women Voters,

          6  that that is the kind of group that would perhaps be

          7  traditionally associated with this kind of an issue.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I think

          9  based on your recommendation, I may reach out to

         10  both that group and some others that I can think of

         11  to see they would be interested.  It sounds like

         12  something that would take a lot of time and effort,

         13  it would have to be a group that is properly funded.

         14                 MS. GORDON:  It is very difficult.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And, I am

         16  not happy to hear that that is the only solution you

         17  can come up with --

         18                 MS. GORDON:  Well, I do not know if

         19  it is the only one.  I will happy to forward to you

         20  the legal authorities and so on if that is of

         21  interest to you.  But on the next level, that does

         22  seem to be the approach that a number of

         23  jurisdictions have tried.

         24  And I also do not know were the impetus came from,

         25  whether the local civic groups themselves were well
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          2  funded enough to handle it, whether it came from

          3  candidates, you know, asking for the assistance, or

          4  what.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, I have

          6  a concern, thank you for that, I have a concern on

          7  Subdivision VI, it says where previously

          8  contributions have to be reported to the best of the

          9  candidate's knowledge, they now must be reported,

         10  and the candidate will be liable for any omissions.

         11  It goes on, I believe, to say that, now not only

         12  will candidates not receive public funds if

         13  documentation is not included, but they may also be

         14  subject to civic penalties.  Now the way I

         15  understand it, right now, if I submit 20

         16  contributions to you, and one of them is missing an

         17  address or some documentation, you can withhold

         18  matching funds on all 20 contributions, correct?

         19                 MS. GORDON:  What happens is that an

         20  individual contribution that does not meet the

         21  requirements will be invalidated, it does not mean

         22  that they will all be invalidated.

         23  The circumstance in which a payment is actually

         24  stopped on all contributions, would be if there is a

         25  finding of a violation, such as an over the limit
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          2  contribution, or a corporate contribution.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:   I am not

          4  sure that that is actually the case.  We have had

          5  money held up on payments that nothing to do with

          6  the payment, with the contribution that was lacking

          7  some documentation, based on the lack of

          8  documentation for a different contribution.

          9                 MS. GORDON:  If the documentation

         10  question arose because it appeared to be a corporate

         11  contribution, for example, that might mean a

         12  violation of the law, that is a possible scenario.

         13  What I understood your question to be, was whether a

         14  particular contribution that might be invalid for

         15  matching purposes, would therefore, cause all

         16  payment to be stopped, and the answer is not if it

         17  is simply a matter of whether that one contribution

         18  is in invalid for matching purposes.  It will all be

         19  stopped, if it appears that there is a violation,

         20  such as over the limit, or corporate contribution.

         21  And sometimes the campaign will be asked for

         22  documentation to show that, for example, if it

         23  appears to be a corporate contribution, the campaign

         24  will be asked to show it is not.  That is the kind

         25  of question that could hold up payment.
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          2                 But I might add that this legislation

          3  provides for a procedure, which we have started to

          4  implement in the last election, towards the end of

          5  the campaign, which will allow the Board to make a

          6  conditional payment to a candidate, when it appears

          7  that there is some matter like that, let us say a

          8  single contribution that looks like it is holding up

          9  the whole payment because of possible violation.  It

         10  will allow the Board to authorize payment, so that

         11  the candidate can quickly correct this, or provide

         12  the documentation, and get the payment without

         13  waiting for the next Board meeting, because that was

         14  a complaint of some of the candidates that the

         15  intervals were too long and the time that they had

         16  to correct something did not always coincide with

         17  the next Board meeting.  So, we tried to start to

         18  remedy that at the end of the last election

         19  administratively, and this bill addresses it on a

         20  legislative level.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:   I think we

         22  are actually saying the same thing, because most

         23  contributions that are lacking documentation, from

         24  personnel experience you are concern about whether

         25  it is a business or a corporation, and it is
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          2  sometimes hard to get proof on it based on a check,

          3  whether it is a business or a corporation.  So every

          4  one of those checks could possibly be a violation,

          5  as you have just defined it, and therefore, every

          6  contribution could be held up based on it.

          7                 I think that that is more, I think

          8  that is too much penalty, first of all, I am glad

          9  you just mentioned the other thing you did about

         10  allowing payments, and I think to increase that

         11  penalty, and subject a campaign to civil penalties

         12  because a lack of documentation, I think that goes

         13  well beyond what is necessary.

         14                 MR. GORDON:  Could you just, I am

         15  sorry, if you would be so kind to point me to

         16  exactly what you are looking at, so that I can --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I am looking

         18  at, I am not sure you have the same document, our

         19  briefing paper; do you have that?

         20                 MS. GORDON:  We may not, no, we do

         21  not have that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It says,

         23   "The Board has adopted Rule 1- 09, Subsection C,"

         24  would that put us in the same place?

         25                 MS. GORDON:  We do not have any

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  narrative we only have a draft bill, so I think you

          3  are reading from a memo, some kind of memo that we

          4  do not have a copy of. Okay

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Page 17, of

          6  that document.

          7                 MS. GORDON:   Page 17?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  The first

          9  page 17, there are two separate page 17's.

         10                 MS. GORDON:  The first page 17, all

         11  right, page 17, okay.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:   Subsection

         13  3, in the middle of the page.

         14                 MS. GORDON:  Three, disclosure

         15  statements not complete, let me just read this,

         16  because this is new to us here.              I think

         17  this does clarify that a failure to include backup

         18  documentation that has been requested by the Board,

         19  can be a violation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And, Mr.

         21  Chair, in amending this bill, be firmly opposed to

         22  that.  Many fund- raiser are held a day, or two

         23  days, before filing requirements are do.  And

         24  therefore, they are submitted with, naturally, some

         25  incomplete documentation.  I think it is enough that
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          2  you do not get the matching funds, if you do not

          3  provide the documentation because it requirements

          4  are strident enough --

          5                 MS. GORDON:  Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: -- to

          7  increase that with a civil penalty, I do not believe

          8  would be appropriate.

          9                 MS. GORDON:  Just to clarify, this is

         10  not the subject of this current legislation, and

         11  maybe that is why the confusion has arisen.  My

         12  counsel has just pointed out to me that that subject

         13  is not addressed in the current legislation.  It is

         14  part of the memo, because the memo goes beyond what

         15  is in the current legislation, but is not really

         16  before you today.

         17                 It is under a heading called Other

         18  Issues for Discussion not addressed in current

         19  legislation.  It is confusing, because it is part of

         20  this--

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Yes.

         22                 MS. GORDON: -- large cover memo, but

         23  it is not before you right now.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It is very

         25  confusing, because my paper reads, whereas
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          2  previously this had to happen, now this must happen,

          3  so--

          4                 MS. GORDON:  I do not know if we are

          5  reading from the same document, but and we do not

          6  have the same things, we were not provided with this

          7  before hand.  And, even the recommendation has to do

          8  with the campaign failing to submit a whole set of

          9  documentation, rather than a single check or

         10  something like that, it is about a complete failure

         11  to provide information, but it is not in this bill.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well,

         13  whatever bill it is in--

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  May I interject

         15  for a moment? This, apparently, this is not a part

         16  of our legislation, this is a rule that they have

         17  adopted.

         18                 It reads, in fact, it reads, the

         19  Board has adopted Rule 109- C that will require

         20  disclosure statements, blah, blah.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well, if

         22  they have adopted that rule, then we should amend

         23  our law to supersede that adoption. I do not believe

         24  any rule that makes these requirements more strident

         25  regarding documentation would be appropriate,
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          2  because the main complaint of candidates is that it

          3  is too strict, and too impossible for these small

          4  campaigns to follow these documentation rules.  So,

          5  now to make someone civilly liable, I think would

          6  defeat the purpose of the legislation, which was to

          7  encourage people to run for office.

          8                 So, I am not sure at what point this

          9  gets discuss, but when it does please mark my

         10  opposition to it.  Thank you.

         11                 MS. GORDON:  Also, for further

         12  clarification, I am not sure that this rule has

         13  changed anything from the past, and I do not know

         14  whether this right here, you know, gives the full

         15  picture.  It is not our document so, I cannot speak

         16  to it, but the purpose is to make it very clear that

         17  a campaign that completely fails to provide

         18  documentation, when it is required to do so, is

         19  subject, potentially, to civil penalties.

         20                 I think that that is actually pretty

         21  straight forward, and the documentation requirements

         22  are absolutely crucial to our ability to do audits

         23  in a timely way, get the funds out to candidates,

         24  and they are after all getting hundreds of thousands

         25  of dollars in public funds.  So, I do not know that
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          2  it is necessary to leap to the conclusion that this

          3  is some overly burdensome thing. Most campaigns

          4  provide most documentation with their filings, and

          5  there is no consequence to them for this rule.

          6  There are some campaigns that have not done that,

          7  and have refused to do it, and it is something that

          8  is very important.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Again, we

         10  still disagree, if you do not provide proper

         11  documentation, you do not receive your matching

         12  funds.  You should not be liable for a penalty,

         13  otherwise, people would not go into the program, if

         14  they are liable for not being able to provide

         15  someone's address because they cannot find it, we

         16  disagree.

         17                 MS. GORDON:  Yes, but we also I think

         18  need to make sure that everybody fully appreciates

         19  that this is not about trivial items, not about a

         20  single item that a candidate cannot find, it is

         21  about a wholesale failure to submit, but anyway as I

         22  say it is not immediately before the Committee.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         24  much.  Again, Council member, I think that your

         25  concerns are dually noted, and will be taken into
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          2  consideration as we move forward.  But, the last

          3  comment you made with regard to the wholesale

          4  examples, to some extent that is not reflected in

          5  this rule, that you are really focusing on the

          6  wholesale examples as opposed to the incidental type

          7  of examples.

          8                 MS. GORDON:  I do not know if anybody

          9  here has the rule in front of them.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay, if you do

         11  have a document that represents what you just said,

         12  then that is find just make sure we get it.

         13                 MS. GORDON:  Okay, we will get it to

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         16  much.  Council Member Addabbo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you

         18  Mr. Chair.  Ms. Gordon, thank you very much for your

         19  time and testimony today as well as the panel here.

         20                 In your testimony you had mentioned

         21  that to monitor the safe harbor, and obviously, the

         22  other changes of 171, and I was just curious, does

         23  CFB have the internal structure in place, or do they

         24  have the structure in place to comply with 171

         25  presently, or the need for changes to be made at
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          2  CFB?

          3                 MS. GORDON:  There will have to be

          4  some changes made, but the structure is there.  In

          5  other words, we are going to have to change things

          6  like our instructions to the candidates, there may

          7  have to be a rule- making that reflects change in

          8  the law. But, in terms of being able to monitor this

          9  kind of activity, and being able to count up the

         10  numbers of contributions, you know, by a computer

         11  count, and this kind of thing, that frame work is

         12  there, and of course certain things will have to be

         13  programmed, so it shows like when you hit a certain

         14  number, $3,000, you know, then there are

         15  consequences, et cetera.  But the infrastructure, if

         16  that is the right word, is there to handle it.

         17  There will have to be some administrative changes,

         18  and changes in the handbook to let the candidates

         19  know.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  The changes

         21  administratively, would you categorize them, as

         22  minor changes, major changes, and how quick can they

         23  be done?

         24                 MS. GORDON:  I think these are pretty

         25  easy.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Great, thank

          3  you very much.

          4                 MS. GORDON:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you,

          6  Council Member Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I am sorry,

          8  Ms. Gordon, I missed the first part of that, because

          9  of the cross talk, and I had the same concern about

         10  the safe threshold, and how that is developed, an

         11  how is that monitored?

         12                 MS. GORDON:  Okay, the threshold is,

         13  this is the political contribution's threshold, or

         14  should I say sort of a ceiling.  First of all, I

         15  should just explain who is effected by this and who

         16  is not.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Yes.

         18                 MS. GORDON:  Once you max out for

         19  public funds in the program, this really is not an

         20  issue for you so, it is not always, it may not be an

         21  issue for every person who joins the program.  The

         22  way the program works now is that if you make

         23  political contributions there are deductions from

         24  your public funds if you do not meet the maximum.

         25  And the reason for that is so that there would not
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          2  be any reality or appearance that public funds are

          3  flowing through one campaign to be a public subsidy,

          4  or to help boot strap another campaign.

          5                 The Board passed a rule, after the

          6  last set of elections, that would permit

          7  contributions of that kind to be made without

          8  deductions, if the campaign does a special kind of

          9  bookkeeping, that is quite complicated for the

         10  candidates, and for the Board.  This provision would

         11  basically say, you are running a City Council

         12  campaign, you want to make up to $3,000 of political

         13  contributions to other campaigns, if you stay within

         14  that limit, there will not be any special accounting

         15  that has to be done, and it will not effect your

         16  public funds payment.  As, I say for people who max

         17  out it has no consequence any way, but it was

         18  thought that it was a reasonable approach to have

         19  some amount, some small amount that would allow

         20  campaigns to do this kind of activity without an

         21  impact.  The $3,000 number is actually, when you

         22  look at the record, a very high number.  The average

         23  Council Campaign spent far, far less than that on

         24  political contributions in the last campaign, but in

         25  any event that was thought to be a reasonable place,
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          2  you know, the proposal was that would be a place to

          3  start, and we will see how it works through the next

          4  election, and then if it causes some concern from

          5  any direction, the Council can reconsider it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, just

          7  another question, thank you for that illumination on

          8  that issue, because I know that whole piece was

          9  confusing to a lot of people, as to whether it was

         10  deducted from--

         11                 MS. GORDON:  Right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: -- if you are

         13  under the match or under the max, that should clear

         14  up a lot of questions that I know couple of people

         15  had.

         16                 I am in Queens, so did you have a

         17  piece regarding the 75 contributions of 10 or more

         18  and whether or not can be accepted from, but now

         19  that those, to meet them, the minimal matchable

         20  criteria for the 2003 elections, instead of 50

         21  contributions, it is now 75?

         22                 MS. GORDON:  It's got two parts to

         23  it.  The problem was with redistricting you do not

         24  know who is in your district.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right.
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          2                 MS. GORDON:  So, if you are trying to

          3  comply with the law, and take contributions from

          4  your district, you may find that somebody who made a

          5  contribution and who is in your current district,

          6  turns out not to be in your district when they are

          7  done with the lines.  So, what the proposal was that

          8  the law should permit you to meet the threshold from

          9  your borough, and not just from your district.  But

         10  since you are going to have a much bigger population

         11  to draw from, it seemed reasonable also that the

         12  number of people you go to would be higher than 50,

         13  and the Board proposal was actually was 100, the

         14  legislation provides for 75 people, but now you can

         15  go the whole borough, and not just to your district.

         16  And, there are one to two districts that actually,

         17  they are straddle boroughs, and then they may have

         18  even a bigger area.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  You put in

         20  here the two boroughs that will surround their

         21  districts, or did you--

         22                 MS. GORDON:  No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: -- or did you

         24  mean the two district that surround the district.

         25                 MS. GORDON:  Just that if there is a
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          2  district that has, I think, there is one or two--

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  That are

          4  multi- borough.

          5                 MS. GORDON: -- that have a couple--

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  It is like the

          7  bi- borough districts.

          8                 MS. GORDON:  Yes, there is only one

          9  or two of them--

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Like Councilman

         11  Reed's district.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay, right,

         13  like Councilman Reed's district, or maybe, all

         14  right, Councilman Vallone district comes from two

         15  boroughs, but not any candidate would--

         16                 MS. GORDON:  No, that would just

         17  apply to the people who have districts that are in

         18  two boroughs.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Right, but, I

         20  would suggest an amendment that, you know, they

         21  could draw from any two districts that surround

         22  their district.  You have some districts that will

         23  put candidates from contributors in their old

         24  district that are no longer in their new district,

         25  that maybe, because you are saying that we could get
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          2  the whole borough pretty much encompasses that. But,

          3  there are some candidates that may, well, if you are

          4  giving them the opportunity to do it from the two

          5  boroughs that surround their district that pretty

          6  much brings it through.

          7                 I just did not want people feel that

          8  they could, a Queens' candidate that was not

          9  adjoining a Brooklyn district or Manhattan district,

         10  could draw from another borough, and have that

         11  considered part of the match.

         12                 MS. GORDON:  Well, you can still get

         13  matchable public, I can still get public funds for

         14  any City resident --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  As long as

         16  they are in the City resident, right--

         17                 MS. GORDON:--  all this addresses is

         18  meeting the threshold.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Threshold,

         20  okay.

         21                 I am going to go back to Council

         22  Member Reed's amendment, to say that I fully support

         23  that also.  I know that in certain districts, as he

         24  said, and one of the things that I am working on in

         25  another venue is the fact that a lot of people are
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          2  doing payday loans, because they only go to check

          3  cashing places, and they do not have a bank account.

          4    So I would agree that especially with the new

          5  forms that I just saw the other day, with the new

          6  compliance form that you have to supply, the $100 is

          7  not should not be the minimum, for money order

          8  contribution.  I am well aware of some issues with

          9  the money order contributions, but as long as the

         10  declaration is clear as it is today, I think that

         11  that would ease that threshold.  I am not asking you

         12  to debate that right now, I am just throwing it out

         13  to you.

         14                 Also, you said this other part was

         15  not in the pending legislation; but I just wanted to

         16  know what is considered proper proof of attempt to

         17  get backup documentation?  In other words, somebody

         18  comes to your fund- raiser that is a friend of a

         19  friend, you know, they write a check, you do not

         20  know them, which has happened in a couple of cases,

         21  you send that person a letter, and you send the

         22  Board a letter, is that considered, I mean what do

         23  you consider before I--

         24                 MS. GORDON:  I think that, first of

         25  all, I want to make a distinction between this
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          2  situation, and I will answer that first, and the

          3  situation that I think is address by this rule.

          4                 The situation you are talking about

          5  when the Board is asking you to find a particular

          6  piece of documentation would be at least a, you

          7  know, a letter that went to the person you are

          8  trying to get it from.  Say you are missing a bill

          9  or something like that, then the Board would expect

         10  to see a letter that went to the vendor asking for

         11  a, you know, I misplaced it, or please send me a

         12  duplicate, you know, whatever, that sort of thing.

         13                      This rule that is described as

         14  an item that is not a part of this legislation, is

         15  about something a little different, which has to do

         16  with a Board request that candidates provide.  And I

         17  am sure you have experience with this, you know,

         18  when you make a filing you provide this backup

         19  documentation it is like a big package that we get,

         20  with the filing and copies of checks and so on,

         21  other kind of documentation that go with that. And,

         22  there are candidates who will submit the cover

         23  information, the filing, but not the documents.  And

         24  we are not talking here about a situation you supply

         25  a pile of documents, and there is a couple of items
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          2  missing, or something like that, that is not what

          3  this is address to, it is address to a package.

          4                 But, in the case you are describing a

          5  letter, you know, is the kind of thing that would be

          6  appropriate.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Okay.  And

          8  just, in general, were there any other suggestions

          9  that you had to this piece of the pending

         10  legislation, of the 171- A, that is now, that you

         11  said there are pieces that we are looking at that

         12  are not pending, and there are pieces that we have

         13  not discussed, since Councilwoman Moskowitz is not

         14  here, I will just be the person who will ask; were

         15  any other pieces that in this pending legislation

         16  that you wanted to address, as far as something that

         17  you are uncomfortable with.

         18                 MS. GORDON:  I guess, I would say

         19  this, I think that there are several items, I tried

         20  to highlight them in my testimony that we think we

         21  need to take, you know, a look at when they are

         22  actually implemented.  We worked extremely closely

         23  with your staff, and it was a very, very productive,

         24  but a very long process.  And this bill is a Council

         25  initiative that was worked through to a point where
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          2  I think the Council representatives and the people

          3  present on behalf of the Board felt that they have

          4  reached a reasonable state.  I do not think it is a

          5  product of, it certainly was not a product of simply

          6  not taking a--

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  It does not--

          8                 MS. GORDON: -- a Council initiative

          9  or a Board initiative, it was a Council initiative

         10  that was refined and worked on, and a lot of input

         11  was had.  So, I think at this point, you know, it

         12  would not be fruitful for me to go backwards over

         13  a--

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  No, I just

         15  meant that--

         16                 MS. GORDON: -- I just want, I raised

         17  in my testimony today the two areas I think are need

         18  to be watched.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  That we have

         20  to deal with in the future.

         21                 MS. GORDON:  Yes, and the Board has a

         22  lengthy set of initiative that it very much wants

         23  the Council to consider, and Council Member Perkins

         24  noted that those things are not on the table right

         25  now, and the debate thing has been taken off, and we
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          2  are hopeful to see that done very quickly also.

          3  But, I think that is really the extent of what my

          4  comments are at this point.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I am done,

          6  thank you, they are throwing me off the mic, but I

          7  am actually done.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

          9  much Councilman Comrie, for your important concerns

         10  that were raised.

         11                 I just want to acknowledge the

         12  presence of Speaker Peter Vallone, who will be

         13  testifying right after this panel.  We made a

         14  commitment to a time frame, at which he would be

         15  available, and we sort of run over that commitment,

         16  so I would ask my colleagues to try to be as concise

         17  as possible.

         18                 And at the same time I would like to

         19  recognize the Chairwoman of our Health Committee

         20  Christine Quinn who has joined us.

         21                 Council Member Nelson.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I will

         23  concede the time, if it would help move the former

         24  speaker.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very
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          2  much for that generosity, and so with that I want to

          3  thank you for your presentation.  I want to, for the

          4  record, appreciate the work that you have been doing

          5  with our staff to helping us refine this program.

          6  This program, as you know, we consider a master

          7  piece in progress, and we are hopeful that this

          8  fruitful type of interaction will continue as we

          9  move forward.

         10                 I want to inform the members that the

         11  intention is to move on this legislation at our next

         12  hearing, which is going to be on the 29th.  So, I

         13  would urge you to make sure that you reach Counsel

         14  to the Committee right away, if there are any issues

         15  that you find are so difficult that you might have a

         16  problem supporting this legislation at our next

         17  meeting.  I know that some were raised, and if there

         18  are of that nature we need to know before we get to

         19  that meeting.  Thank you very much.

         20                 MS. GORDON:  I would like to thank

         21  you Council Member Perkins, I would like to thank

         22  all the members of the Committee for their

         23  curiosity, and again, the staff who have worked very

         24  long and hard with us.

         25                 And I would like to take this
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          2  opportunity to say that I hope that Speaker Vallone,

          3  who most wisely who included in the original

          4  legislation one of the most important aspects of

          5  this law, especially in comparison with other laws

          6  you see around the Country.  The mandate in this law

          7  to revisit it after each election is extraordinarily

          8  important, because as Council Member Perkins has

          9  said, it is a masterpiece in progress, it needs

         10  continual refinement, and it is a testament to the

         11  fathers of this law, including Speaker Vallone that

         12  they--

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  No pun

         14  intended.

         15                 MS. GORDON: -- that they

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  You do not

         17  think--

         18                 MS. GORDON: -- it really was not, it

         19  really was not, that this procedure is being

         20  undertaken, and I hope that Speaker Vallone takes

         21  great pride in.  Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you.

         23  With that introduction we would like to call forward

         24  the master of the piece, the Speaker Peter Vallone

         25  Sr.  Do I hear an applause from one end, very good.
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          2  And I want to also say to the members of the panel

          3  Speaker Vallone will be speaking on Intro. 313- A,

          4  and will be joined afterwards by Paul Wooten, of

          5  Paul Wooten and Associates, and then we are going to

          6  ask Mr. Kreski to come forward, and return back

          7  Intro. 171 that he would like to speak on.

          8                 At this point, we will swear in the

          9  Speaker.

         10                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:

         11  Considered me sworn.

         12                 MR. TOLLIN:  Good morning Speaker,

         13  could you raise your right hand?  Do you solemnly

         14  swear and affirm that the testimony you are about to

         15  give is, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         16

         17                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:  I do.

         18                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you.

         19                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:  I always

         20  wanted to swear at the council, but now I will take

         21  the opportunity to be sworn in.

         22                 Let me first say that I overheard a

         23  good deal of your discussion before so, my

         24  complements to the Committee. Campaign Financing

         25  Law, was one of the most difficult, if not the most
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          2  difficult law that was passed in these halls.  And,

          3  the reason why it was so difficult, because it was

          4  felt that the enforcement of it would be almost

          5  impossible to do.  But as I can see, and as the

          6  Council has unfolded, and that is the reason why

          7  that I put in the bill the annual review, it is

          8  because of the fact, that the whole law can only

          9  work, if it is balanced, government can only work,

         10  life can only work, if it is balanced.

         11                 And, the idea of Campaign Finance is

         12  obviously to give everyone an opportunity to run for

         13  office, because that opportunity has clearly been

         14  taken away by the cost of media advertising, and the

         15  cost of simply running, even for a local campaign.

         16  Without Campaign Financing, the dream, the American

         17  dream could never happen, it could never be

         18  possible, for the average person to run.  Also, it

         19  does not penalize the very wealthy.

         20                 The last campaign, which I will take

         21  this opportunity, which showed twhere more money was

         22  spent by our current Mayor than was ever spent

         23  before.  There was no reason to penalize him, in a

         24  matter of fact, those of us who had the opportunity

         25  to run against him came very close to beating him.
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          2  It was not a case of money, it was a case of

          3  platforms, and ideas for running the City in the

          4  future, and the people wanted a change and was fine.

          5    But, for Campaign Finance there would have been no

          6  way at all for anyone to compete against anyone who

          7  had a $100 million to spend for office or more.

          8  There are no limitations, you could spend an untold

          9  amount of monies, and Campaign Finance has given us

         10  given us an opportunity, and everyone an opportunity

         11  to be here and to run.  That opportunity would be

         12  taken away if those who administered the law, regard

         13  the law as sacrosanct and not doing justice, and why

         14  we gave an opportunity to change the rules.        Unfortunately

         15  , there has been too many incidents in the past

         16  where candidates who are in an office already are

         17  being penalized, as against the ones who are running

         18  for office, because they are expected to have the

         19  same kind of resources available that someone who is

         20  running with $100 million has, and that is just not

         21  the case.  So, it very, very important that you have

         22  strict oversight of those who administer the law,

         23  because they do not understand the difficulties that

         24  are involved in running a good and honest campaign

         25  and trying to raise money at the same time, so, my
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          2  compliments.

          3                 In terms of this bill, which you have

          4  drafted Intro, 313, which is known as the Dinkins

          5  Bill, I think it is a very good idea to allow Mayor

          6  Dinkins to pay off the debts, I think it is very

          7  admirable, and that he wants to do that.  I think

          8  you have made sufficient changes in this bill so as

          9  to avoid any possibility of fraud or candidates

         10  simply running for office, and spending more than he

         11  or she should be spending with the idea there might

         12  be able to raise money at the end of the campaign.

         13  For those who do not participate in Campaign

         14  Finance, obviously, they can do this without any

         15  penalty, so why should a candidate who participates

         16  in a Campaign Finance be penalized, particularly,

         17  when you have given an eight year, kind of statute

         18  of limitations here, which says you cannot do it for

         19  eight years, meaning that you cannot use this money

         20  as if you are running for office again for the next

         21  year.

         22                 SOI think you have plenty of

         23  protection in the bill, I think it is a good bill, I

         24  think that people who give material and supplies to

         25  a candidate have a right to expect repayment.  I
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          2  think it is almost impossible to expect repayment

          3  eight years down the line, but if there are people

          4  willing to do that, than why not. So, my testimony

          5  would be in favor.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I believe that

          7  there is a question from a Peter Vallone Jr. To

          8  Peter Vallone Sr.

          9                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:  Can I

         10  take the fifth, or do I have to answer this.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  You can take

         12  the fifth, actually.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  You may need

         14  an attorney for this actually.  This does not mean

         15  you are running again for City Council in September

         16  dose it?

         17                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:  I have

         18  not completely made up my mind, it depends on the

         19  questions you ask.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  You have

         21  sworn in the witness, correct Bill, the witness is

         22  sworn?  You know how long I have waited to do this,

         23  I could go into things like the allowance raises you

         24  did not give me when I was eight, but my Chairman is

         25  warned me to stay on topic here.
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          2                 I actually have concerns about this

          3  bill, I did not want to raise with you, and I have

          4  not had a chance to do prior to this.  If I remember

          5  correctly, you ran for Mayor.

          6                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:  Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And you were

          8  subject to the provisions of the Campaign Finance

          9  Board rules.

         10                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:   Correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And, when

         12  you were done you did not have any debts, every

         13  vendor that you contracted with was fully paid at

         14  the end of your campaign, correct?

         15                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:  Yes, but

         16  I also had the experience of running for Governor,

         17  in which that was not the case, and I did have to

         18  have a fund raise after running for Governor, in

         19  order to pay off a approximately $250,000 in debts,

         20  and I am the kind of person who does not want to

         21  leave anybody unpaid.  So, I was allowed to do it

         22  for the race for Governor, and I knew full well I

         23  was not going to allowed to do it when I ran for as

         24  Mayor. So, I was much more careful running for Mayor

         25  than I was for Governor.  Even though this was done
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          2  by a Campaign Committee, not by me.  I think that a

          3  candidate has an obligation to have oversight over

          4  that Campaign Committee so it does not spend more

          5  money than you have.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well, that

          7  is my concern, I was in the room at the time when

          8  people urged you to spend more than you had, and

          9  because you were not personally liable and you did

         10  not have to pay these vendors, and obviously, you

         11  refused to do that.  You are not worry that this

         12  bill will encourage that type of overspending?

         13                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:  No, this

         14  is a bill that while constitutionally has to refer

         15  to a whole class of people, in particularly, it

         16  refers to Mayor Dinkins, who has been trying to do

         17  the right thing, to pay off these debts, and he has

         18  not been able to do that, because of the legitimate

         19  concerns of the Campaign Finance Board, so as not to

         20  encourage other candidates to do the same thing.

         21  So, I think this is a good balance, and I am fully

         22  in favor of it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Well, I am

         24  still looking for that allowance increase.  You have

         25  convinced me.  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Council Member

          3  Nelson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Thank you Mr.

          5  Chair.

          6                 It has been inconceivable to me why

          7  there would be a problem with this, it is not

          8  matchable.  You are going out and people are saying

          9  here we agree with you and help you pay if off.

         10  Could you possibly illuminate any down side to this?

         11                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:  Well, if

         12  did not have the eight- year limitation in the bill,

         13  it would encourage candidates who participate in

         14  Campaign Finance to say what difference does in make

         15  I will go back to John and Mary Jones and ask them

         16  for another $4,500 afterwards, and I will spend more

         17  than I would have been allowed to spend.  And, since

         18  you have public funds involved here, if it was not

         19  for the fact that public funds were given this would

         20  not be, we would not be discussing this bill. Once

         21  you are dealing with public funds, you have to be

         22  very careful, that those public funds are not used

         23  to multiply your donations.  You have to stay within

         24  the limits, than any other candidate is bound to,

         25  so, it was fought with danger and that is why it
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          2  took so long, and that is why my complaints to the

          3  Committee and to your Counsel for coming up with a

          4  bill with such strict limitations in it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Okay, I just

          6  wanted to get your opinion on that particular

          7  aspect, thank you, Mr. Speaker.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:   Any other

          9  questions?  Okay

         10                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:  Let me

         11  just say Mr. Chairperson, as you know I served as

         12  Chairperson of the Governmental Operations

         13  Committee, and I consider it one of the most, if not

         14  the most important Committee's in the Council,

         15  because government works through the oversight that

         16  your Committee gives, and my compliments to you and

         17  the members of the Committee.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         19  much, and especially, I would like to echo that with

         20  regard to the members of the Committee who have been

         21  very diligent and vigilant in appreciating the

         22  responsibilities of this Committee and have been so

         23  responsive to the work, and to being available on

         24  Fridays on the coldest days in the winter, when

         25  other might not want to be available.
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          2                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:   The

          3  record indicate I am wearing a sweater for one of

          4  the first times in my life.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

          6  much Mr. Speaker--

          7                 HONORABLE SPEAKER VALLONE:  Thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: -- for your

         10  work, and for the City, and for your presence today.

         11                 Paul Wooten.  Please identify

         12  yourself--

         13                 MR. WOOTEN:  Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: -- and your

         15  affiliation.

         16                 MR. WOOTEN:  Good morning Mr.

         17  Chairman, members of the Council.  My name is Paul

         18  Wooten, I am an attorney.  I have my own law firm

         19  called Paul Wooten and Associates, and we specialize

         20  in election cases, representing elected officials,

         21  churches and community organizations.  And, I am

         22  here today to speak on behalf of the Honorable Una

         23  Clarke.

         24                 The Honorable Una Clarke is the

         25  Chairman of the Association of Caribbean Elected
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          2  Officials and Leaders, and they have their annual

          3  convention in Florida, during this period, which was

          4  scheduled at least six months ago.  She would be

          5  here herself, but for the fact that being a Chairman

          6  of that Association required her to be in Florida.

          7  Also, she will be submitting written testimony to

          8  the Government Ops Committee at a later time, but I

          9  am here to summarize some of the points that I

         10  believe she would make.  `         She has served as

         11  a member of the City Council, from 1991 to the year

         12  2001, a distinguished member,  And, she currently

         13  has a debt owed to the Campaign Finance Board, so

         14  she is here to advocate on behalf of the law that

         15  changes it from eight years to four years.

         16                 In her case, she had a case in 1997

         17  with the Campaign Finance Board, and at that

         18  particular time, you had a matchable fund limit of

         19  $124,000.  You had matchable funds in the amount of

         20  $40,000.  It was determined by the Campaign Finance

         21  Board sometime in May of the year 2000, that she had

         22  over spent her campaign funds in the amount of

         23  $9,877.  Now I say that again, they said she

         24  overspent public funds in the amount of $9,877.    The

         25  Campaign Finance Board then assessed a penalty, a
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          2  two and one half times the amount penalty of

          3  $48,086, so that the total amount that they assessed

          4  her and her Campaign Committee and treasure was

          5  $57,943.  Now I want to stress that. Because you see

          6  these newspaper articles all time where Miss Clarke

          7  supposedly owes $58,000, which makes it seem like

          8  she is some sort of deadbeat who is going around

          9  ripping off the public coffers for $58,000, nothing

         10  if further from the truth.

         11                 According to the Campaign Finance

         12  Board, they said there was an over payment of

         13  $9,877.  And, I would like to explain that for a

         14  minute, because in 1997, when she run for re-

         15  election she had very, very creditable sources that

         16  she had an opponent, by the name of Leroy Wilkins,

         17  Leroy Wilkes that is W- I- L- K- E- S.  He had

         18  applied for membership on the local Community Board

         19  telling people he was running against Miss Clarke in

         20  the primary.  He had approached various churches and

         21  reverends asking for time to speak, also saying

         22  that.  He reportedly had circulated petitions for

         23  the primary.  So in anticipation of the race, Miss

         24  Clarke being an incumbent had certain events prior

         25  to the petition period, in June and July, excuse me,
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          2  in May, June and July.

          3                 Subsequently Mr. Wilkes did not file

          4  for the primary, he later filed for the general, and

          5  as you know petitions are do for the primary at the

          6  middle of the third week in July, and in the

          7  general, they are later in August. So, she did not

          8  find out that she had no opponent until after the

          9  third week in July.  She subsequently was given

         10  matching funds in August in the amount of $35,000,

         11  which she paid primarily for the pre- petition

         12  period expenses, in April, May, June and the

         13  beginning of July.  She then won there was no

         14  contested election in the primary, and then there

         15  was a contested election in the general.  At the end

         16  of the period, the Campaign Finance Board approached

         17  her and said well since you did not have an opponent

         18  in the primary, we are combining the two and your

         19  expenditure limit is $124,000, not a $124,000 for

         20  the primary and $124,000 for the general.  And even

         21  under that analysis, she only overspent by $9,877.

         22                 She approached the Finance Board, she

         23  had  presented evidence at one of there hearings,

         24  which is really argument before the Board, in which

         25  she presented creditable evidence to believe that
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          2  she was going to have an opponent, and therefore,

          3  had spent these pre- petition period expenses.

          4                 It is interesting to note now that

          5  you do not do that the Campaign Finance Board

          6  changed their system after this, because now they

          7  will not give you financing until after petitions

          8  are filed and verified and you make the ballot,

          9  through the hearing period, but in 1997 in its

         10  infancy the Board did not operate that way.  Well

         11  they did not agree with her, they assessed her, the

         12  outstanding penalties, again, of $9,877 and a

         13  whopping penalty of $48,086.

         14                 Now notwithstanding what happened

         15  with the Campaign Finance Board and the fact that

         16  she appealed, this and the litigation is ongoing,

         17  and there may even be an appeal of the Supreme Court

         18  case, I appeal to you to allow her to raise funds to

         19  pay off the debt.  Under the current Finance Board

         20  with eight years, she would not be eligible to raise

         21  money until November 2005, because she ran in 1997.

         22  And, the law, which allows her to raise money

         23  expires in January 1st, 2006, which means she would

         24  basically have 60 days to pay off $58,000, including

         25  the 9 percent that is accumulating for the time of
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          2  the judgement, if there is a judgement.

          3                 So if you were to change it to four

          4  that would allow her to raise money now, and also

          5  pay off the debt, she is more than willing to pay

          6  off the $9,800, although she feels she has a

          7  creditable reason.  We have approached the Finance

          8  Board a number of times to try to settle this debt

          9  pre- litigation, we could not reach an agreement,

         10  and we think it would be equitable for someone who

         11  has certainly served the Council as a distinguished

         12  member and had a creditable reason to believe they

         13  were acting perfectly lawful and in accordance with

         14  the rules of the Campaign Finance Board.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Just want to

         16  thank you for your testimony.  Just in brief, you

         17  are suggesting that we are not going far enough and

         18  we should extend this--

         19                 MR. WOOTEN:  Yes, I think it should

         20  say four or more years--

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay.

         22                 MR. WOOTEN: -- which would allow it

         23  to go back further.  Now Miss Clarke is not the only

         24  one in this situation, Christopher Lynn had a

         25  similar situation in which he was assessed $27,000,
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          2  it was a small amount, I believe, the assessment was

          3  three to five and he also received a whopping

          4  penalty, which he had to pay off.  So, what is does

          5  it would allow some people who certainly act

          6  lawfully, who have reasonable cause to believe

          7  certain things are true and would have an out to do

          8  so.  As it stands now she has virtually no ability

          9  to raise this huge, huge amount of money not to

         10  mention the fact there is a 9 percent interest

         11  accumulating on the debt.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you much.

         13    Let me just say that there was some consideration

         14  with regard to the four years, and we will we again

         15  take into consideration the concern that you are

         16  raising.

         17                 At this point, I want to turn to

         18  Council Member Michael Nelson followed by Council

         19  Member Phil Reed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Good morning

         21  Mr. Wooten.

         22                 MR. WOOTEN:  Good morning Councilman.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I have no

         24  reason to doubt what you are saying whatsoever, you

         25  are a distinguished member of the Bar and well-
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          2  respected attorney.  And, based on what you are

          3  saying, and of course, I know Miss Clarke, to be the

          4  highest standing in the community, and was on the

          5  Council.  Can everybody take this into consideration

          6  $9,877 based upon those circumstances, which she

          7  thought she had someone running against her, and to

          8  be fined like five times the amount and not being

          9  able to pay it off and having these articles in the

         10  paper, which I read too, I read them knowing the

         11  situation, and being anything but amused how it came

         12  out, how it looked.  This injustice, how this could

         13  matriculate into this situation, it is really and

         14  injustice and it is really, really and ugly

         15  situation, which again there is more than of course

         16  Una Clarke being involved with this, it could happen

         17  to anybody, going along doing the right thing, and

         18  then being whacked.

         19                 So, I would suggest to the Chair,

         20  please, to take this seriously into account, and I

         21  for one will be moving with you in this direction to

         22  try to ensure that this does not happen anybody

         23  else, and that Miss Clarke can get into the good

         24  graces of the public who does not understand the

         25  intricacies of this and is made to look bad, and
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          2  wrongful so.  Thank you, thank you, Mr. Chair.

          3                 MR. WOOTEN:  Thank you, Mr.

          4  Councilman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you, I

          6  just want to make an observation, do you understand

          7  the reason for the term that you would have to stay

          8  out the amount of years that you would stay out, do

          9  you understand the thinking that was involved with

         10  that, instead of whether it was four years, eight

         11  years, what ever the number of years you understand.

         12                 MR. WOOTEN:  I understand what I have

         13  been told, but I am not sure--

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  What have you

         15  been told?

         16                 MR. WOOTEN:  I was told it was to

         17  limit the amount of people who go in, because of the

         18  amount of funds that were necessary to do something,

         19  I am not sure I do understand.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Okay. I do not

         21  think the amount of funds is not as much as a

         22  concern, because there is no public funds involved.

         23                 MR. WOOTEN:  Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  These are funds

         25  that are coming from past contributors.
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          2                 MR. WOOTEN:  Correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  But the concern

          4  was to find a time frame in which a loser would not

          5  be a candidate, and there by get back into the

          6  program, and then expend or receive public funds and

          7  thereby undermine the integrity of the Campaign

          8  Finance Program.  So, we were looking for a time

          9  frame that would keep a loser, if you will, out long

         10  enough such that there would no corruption  of the

         11  intent of the Campaign Finance rules that would kick

         12  in some public money.

         13                 MR. WOOTEN:  But, certainly is not

         14  four years long enough?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Well, there was

         16  a version of this that did include four years, so

         17  from that perspective it was looked at and we are

         18  still at this point--

         19                 MR. WOOTEN:  Okay, I would just like

         20  to--

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: -- at the eight-

         22  year cycle with the consideration that we may try

         23  other ways, if the effort works of maybe extending

         24  it to be more inclusive.

         25                 MR. WOOTEN:  Yes, I understand some
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          2  of the logic of the Board, and I am an attorney who

          3  have represented quite a few people before the

          4  Campaign Finance Board, and sometimes I get the

          5  impression that the Board presupposes that almost

          6  everybody who comes before them are dishonest, or

          7  are out to try to trick the system.  Now, I

          8  understand the tremendous time pressure they are

          9  under, but there are a lot people who come before

         10  the Board who intent is to be very, very honest,

         11  they have high integrity, you know, they work

         12  sedulously to meet the time frame, notwithstanding

         13  that sometimes your election could turn on which

         14  representatives you get at the Board.  Some

         15  representatives are better than others, some

         16  representatives are more helpful than others, and

         17  depending upon which one you get, and who you

         18  interface with could very well determine whether you

         19  get your money early or late and determine who wins

         20  the race.

         21                 All I am saying is that I understand

         22  the possibility, possibility for corruption, but

         23  there may be another way to address the person who

         24  loses as oppose to penalizing someone who has made a

         25  good faith effort to comply with everything and
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          2  really, really is the subject of injustice.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I appreciate

          4  very much what you are raising and, let me just also

          5  make note that you are raising something that to

          6  some extent does not simply speaks to this as much,

          7  as it speaks to the process that is presently in

          8  place that did not take into consideration a

          9  circumstance that took place in 97 under the rules

         10  of 97--

         11                 MR. WOOTEN:  But what I am suggesting

         12  is that maybe an opportunity --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Right.

         14                 MR. WOOTEN: -- to solve--

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Right.

         16                 MR. WOOTEN: -- that situation and I

         17  honestly believe that Miss Clarke is not the only

         18  person in this situation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I appreciate

         20  that--

         21                 MR. WOOTEN:  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: -- I just want

         23  you to know that you have sort of informed us that

         24  maybe there in another problem in there that we need

         25  to fix.  A problem that is exemplified by Miss
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          2  Clarke's circumstance, which may be emblematic (sic)

          3  of a whole category of folks that are victimized, by

          4  virtual of rules that did not take into

          5  consideration the circumstances that sort of trapped

          6  her, that sort of got her into the situation that

          7  she is in.  So, I just want to express our

          8  appreciation of that--

          9                 MR. WOOTEN:  Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: -- if not this

         11  way then--

         12                 MR. WOOTEN:  Okay,

         13                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: -- maybe another

         14  way that is all I am saying.

         15                 MR. WOOTEN:  Okay, I appreciate that,

         16  Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Councilman

         18  Reed, will be back, I am sure.

         19                 Councilman Comrie.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Good morning

         21  Mr. Wooten and thank you for coming and illuminating

         22  us to this issue.  I think I fully agree with you,

         23  that Campaign Finance has put the Class of 97 in a

         24  precarious position, because they are giving them no

         25  alternatives to raise money to pay off debt; but
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          2  isn't a lot of that debt because of their fines and

          3  findings on her campaign also?

          4                 MR. WOOTEN:  Yes, as I have pointed

          5  out they said she over stated by approximately

          6  $9,800 and the fines were $48,000 and some change.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Yes.

          8                 MR. WOOTEN:   So, because of the way

          9  Campaign Finance works ,it is basically based on

         10  contract law or initially they say it, that when you

         11  sign up and you file your application your attesting

         12  to go by their rules and regs and you are signing up

         13  contract law to personal civil liability.  Such

         14  that, even though it is a problem, you do have civil

         15  liability that you incurred during your campaign.

         16                 Now if she had the ability to raise

         17  money, this would have been long ago dealt with. I

         18  think she would have been able to raise the money to

         19  pay off, not only what I consider to be the

         20  principle but--

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Yes.

         22                 MR. WOOTEN: -- this huge fine

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Right, right,

         24  and so therefore, since she was never able to raise

         25  the money to pay off the principle therefore, she
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          2  incurred the huge fine.

          3                 MR. WOOTEN:  Well, the fine was

          4  assessed, but I think she would have paid it off

          5  certainly by now.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay, also and

          7  you state, that you feel that there are a lot of

          8  other candidates that are in this predicament.

          9                 MR. WOOTEN:  I know of two or three,

         10  I am told there are others who --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Okay.

         12                 MR. WOOTEN: -- would have raised

         13  money, and these were candidates who would have had

         14  a legitimate claim.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Would consider

         16  they extend the back end of the laws, as opposed to

         17  sunsetting in 2006, going back or do you think it is

         18  more prudent to have them do it now, while it is

         19  still a little fresher in people's minds.

         20                 MR. WOOTEN:  Are you talking about

         21  rather than sunset the law for 2006 to extend it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Right, right.

         23                 MR. WOOTEN:  I think if you were to

         24  extend it now it would help candidates in this

         25  cycle--
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Yes.

          3                 MR. WOOTEN:  I do not know if it is

          4  going to be able help candidates in the 97 cycle,

          5  only because those candidates have such huge

          6  interest rates, because when you have a debt you

          7  have to pay off the interest rate.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Right, so--

          9                 MR. WOOTEN:  So,

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So, you are

         11  actually saying -

         12                 MR. WOOTEN: -- so even if you were to

         13  extend it beyond 2006 that does not help the Class

         14  of 97.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  Because their

         16  interest rates would keep get them--

         17                 MR. WOOTEN:  Right, but it would

         18  certainly help the Class of 2001, and those persons

         19  who in good faith might make some error or some

         20  issues come up there.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  So, in that

         22  case I would agree with your amendment, to do it for

         23  four years, because these people that are trying in

         24  good faith, or actually have no opportunity to have

         25  good faith, because they cannot raise the money to
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          2  pay off what is a debt that has been incurred upon

          3  them.  And, yet they have no opportunity, Mr.

          4  Chairman, to even resolve this issue, because they

          5  do not have the ability to raise the money, or go

          6  back to their contributors under the current law.

          7                 So, therefore I would strongly agree

          8  with the amendment to do it for fours years to allow

          9  those people to come and resolve their financial

         10  obligations to the City.

         11                 But it also brings me to another

         12  issue that I would hope that we address at some

         13  other point is how Campaign Finance treats these

         14  issues of dispute, and how they are effecting

         15  candidates especially in the minority communities

         16  that seem to be predominate at the end of the day

         17  with most of the fines and penalties that are

         18  imposed by Campaign Finance.  And I would hope that

         19  this Committee gets to address that by some sort of

         20  definitive detail on what the Campaign Finance

         21  assesses in fines and penalties, over their last two

         22  elections.  As I have been asking for that in other

         23  venues and that has not been forthcoming yet, I

         24  would like to see that given to us and some

         25  documentation form, so that we could really have
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          2  some confidence that the penalties that they are

          3  assessing, they are assessing fairly across the

          4  board. That they are assessing with the same

          5  standard for candidates that are coming from every

          6  part of the City.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  I believe we

          8  are getting that documentation, and hopefully, we

          9  will be getting it before Wednesday, but I am not

         10  100 percent sure.  Counsel is in conversation now

         11  with the Campaign Finance Board, with regard to a

         12  series of questions, amongst them is the one that

         13  you are raising now.

         14                 Thank you very much for your

         15  testimony, and best regards to you and Miss Clarke,

         16  and we will definitely look into the concerns that

         17  you have raised.

         18                 MR. WOOTEN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         19  thank you members of the Committee.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED:  And please

         21  tell, Mrs. Clarke, you saw me here.

         22                 MR. WOOTEN:  Yes, I will.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  We would like

         24  to now have come forward Mr. Harry Kreski, who is

         25  here representing the Independence Party.

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 MR. KRESKI:  Good morning, thank you.

          3                 I am Counsel to the Independence

          4  Party, and I am here on behalf of the Independence

          5  Party, Kathy Stewart, the Chair of the New York

          6  County Independence Party, who testified at the last

          7  hearing is unable to be here this morning.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  If you do not

          9  mind, Counsel is available to swear you in.

         10                 MR. KRESKI:  I am sorry.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  That is all

         12  right.

         13                 MR. TOLLIN:  Good afternoon Mr.

         14  Kreski.  Could you raise your right hand?  Do you

         15  solemnly swear and affirm that the testimony you are

         16  about to give is the truth the whole truth and

         17  nothing but the truth?

         18                 MR. KRESKI:  I do.

         19                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you, could you

         20  please state your name for the record?

         21                 MR. KRESKI:  Harry Kreski.

         22                 MR. TOLLIN:  Thank you.

         23                 MR. KRESKI:  On behalf of Miss

         24  Stewart, and the Independence Party we are pleased

         25  that the Committee that we raised the last time
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          2  about the changes in the mandatory debate aspect of

          3  the Campaign Finance Law.

          4                 I think the inclusiveness of the

          5  debates has been one of the strongest aspects of the

          6  Campaign Finance law, and I understand that, at this

          7  point in the process, no effort is being made or the

          8  current draft of the bill does not include any

          9  changes in the present legislation, which we think

         10  is very, very positive and we are happy about that.

         11                 I had prepared testimony with regard

         12  to a draft that I received on Monday, I will not go

         13  into that, I have given a copy of that to your

         14  Counsel, Mr. Tollin.  In the event that the debate

         15  issue comes up again, we would very much like to be

         16  kept in the loop and advised of any further proposed

         17  changes in that.

         18                 While I was here this morning I heard

         19  that, this is a different subject, I heard

         20  Councilman Reed, I was very glad he did raise the

         21  issue of money orders, and in addition to

         22  discrimination with regard to the amount of money

         23  somebody can give in the form of a money order,

         24  while it is not in the statute or the regulations it

         25  is commonly known even in regard to the meeting
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          2  threshold, and money orders contributions, as small

          3  as ten dollars, which can count toward threshold

          4  that the auditors and the people at the Campaign

          5  Finance Board, look askance at money orders, and

          6  have denied even eligibility for funding to campaign

          7  that rely heavily on money orders.

          8                 I think that that is particular

          9  insidious form of discrimination, since reading the

         10  statute you would think that if it is less than a

         11  certain amount 200, 100 or whatever that a money

         12  order is as good as a check.  And, it is as good as

         13  a check when you pay your light bill, it is as good

         14  as a check when you pay your landlord.  And, I think

         15  it is particular an insidious form of discrimination

         16  that even though the regulations are neural on their

         17  face, that a campaign in a community where money

         18  orders are widely used is actually discriminated

         19  against.  And, I would ask the Committee to consider

         20  some way of addressing that problem, even to the

         21  extent of and this is simply, simply saying that

         22  there shall be no presumption, that a money order is

         23  any less valid than a check, so long as the other

         24  documentation requirements are met.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Let me there is

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  assumption about the communities that rely so

          3  heavily on money orders.  And, in response to that

          4  assumption the Campaign Finance Board pointed out

          5  that anyone with a money order above $100 more that

          6  likely has the wherewithal to use an alternative,

          7  legitimate instrument such that it would not be a

          8  violation of the Campaign Finance Program. How do

          9  you respond to that?

         10                 MR. KRESKI:  I do not think the

         11  Campaign Finance Board should be making judgement

         12  about people's life styles, and whether they decide

         13  to spend the extra $100 on a checking account or on

         14  books for their children to use at school.  I do not

         15  think that that is an appropriate position for the

         16  Campaign Finance Board to have, I was surprised that

         17  they went so far to say that at the hearing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Thank you very

         19  much Mr. Kreski--

         20                 MR. KRESKI:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: -- and I want to

         22  thank the Independence Party, you know, they are one

         23  of the more responsive bodies that represent

         24  themselves at these hearings, whether or not we

         25  disagree, they are definitely fully involved with
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          2  this process here, and that is a compliment not only

          3  to the party but also to our democracy as it is

          4  represented by this City Council.  I want to thank

          5  you and the party for your participation.

          6                 MR. KRESKI:  Thank you sir.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:  Now we have

          8  concluded the hearing with regard to the two pieces

          9  of legislation, to my knowledge there are no other

         10  individuals that are here to testify, and therefore

         11  we are going to conclude with the following

         12  announcement.

         13                 Again, I want to remind the members

         14  that our intention is to vote on these two pieces of

         15  legislation at our next Committee meeting we will

         16  move these two pieces of legislation.  I heard some

         17  concerns, especially with regard to the changes with

         18  the Campaign Finance Program, and particularly the

         19  one that was pointed out by Council Member Reed, and

         20  it seemed to be a concern others shared.  If there

         21  are any such strongly held objections that would

         22  incline one not to support any one of these bills,

         23  please let Counsel know as soon as possible, so that

         24  we can, if possible, make the appropriate changes,

         25  it may not be possible, but at least we will know
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          2  what the obstacles are before we come to our next

          3  meeting, which will be on the 29th at which point it

          4  is the intention of the Chair to move these two

          5  bills, and would be hopeful that the members of the

          6  Committee will comfortable to do so as well.

          7                 But, again I just want to urge folks

          8  to take their time to let Counsel Matthew Tollin

          9  know what those concerns are. It is possible we made

         10  not be able to move them, because of the strenuous

         11  and broad concern, and therefore, would have to go

         12  back into some other negotiations.

         13                 With that in mind, I want to thank

         14  all who attended especially the members and the

         15  public.  This meeting is adjourned.

         16                 (The hearing adjourned at 11:50 a.m.)
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